
 

    STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 BUREAU OF PURCHASE AND PROPERTY 
 STATE HOUSE ANNEX 
 25 CAPITOL STREET 
 CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6398 
 
 
 ADDENDUM #2 TO RFP NO. 2016-185 
 
 
DATE OF BID OPENING: 8/19/2016              TIME OF BID OPENING: 12:00 NOON 
  
FOR: Performance Contracting Services for 28 Buildings in Concord, NH 
 
PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING: 
 
While the question period is closed, the State will allow proposed changes to contract 
language to be submitted for consideration before 4:00PM on July 15, 2016. Please submit 
all proposed language changes to Karen Rantamaki at Karen.rantamaki@nh.gov and copy 
Mike Connor at Michael.connor@nh.gov. 
 
 
PLEASE SEE THESE ATTACHMENTS: 

 
 

o Q&A, Question period (Please note – Additional questions were submitted 
and are still being reviewed by the RFP review team) 

 
 

BID CONTACT: Karen Rantamaki, P.E. 
TEL. NO.: 603/271-2698 
 
NOTE:  IN THE EVENT THAT YOUR BID INVITATION HAS BEEN SENT TO THIS OFFICE PRIOR TO RECEIVING THIS ADDENDUM, 

RETURN ADDENDUM WITHIN THE SPECIFIED TIME WITH ANY CHANGES YOU MAY WISH TO MAKE AND MARK ON THE 
REMITTANCE ENVELOPE BID INVITATION NUMBER AND OPENING DATE.  RETURNED ADDENDA WILL SUPERSEDE 
PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED BID. 

 
BIDDER____________________________ ADDRESS ____________________________ 
 
BY________________________________         ____________________________ 
   (this document must be signed) 
    
_______________________________TEL. NO.____________________________ 
   (please type or print name) 
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RFP 2016-185 Energy Saving Performance Contract for 28 Buildings in Concord



Responses to Questions Received During the Period Ending June 30, 2016





 

1. Contract Language - After a review of Appendix D: Sample Contract, 

a. There is no reference to Indemnification of either party or Limits of Liability for the ESCO. Will the State of New Hampshire agree to negotiate language regarding Indemnification and Limits of Liabilities? We would suggest some language that limits liabilities so the total liabilities regardless of the form of action are limited to an amount equal to the total project sell price. In regards to Indemnification we would suggest mutual between both parties. 



Any contract that the State enters into will utilize standard terms and conditions contained in the Form P-37. This document is posted with the other documents under Transmittal letter.  Section 13 of the P-37 has the standard provisions regarding Indemnification.  The State does not indemnify any Contractors.  Any other proposed changes to the indemnification Section need to be requested during the vendor inquiry period.  





b. We would like to add language to the Environmental Compliance Section #13. Will the State of New Hampshire agree to negotiate contract language that more clearly spells out a process to handle Asbestos-Containing Materials and Other Hazardous Material? We realize that neither party (State of New Hampshire nor ESCO) is licensed to undertake direct obligations relating to the identification, abatement, clean-up, control, removal or disposal of Asbestos/Hazardous Containing Material. We would suggest some language associated with materials we are able to identify during our audit or Materials that the State of New Hampshire has identified clearly for the Energy Services Company to consider. The other language would address unforeseen Asbestos/Hazardous-Containing Materials or other hazardous material. We can suggest language if it would be helpful. 



The Contractor is responsible for any hazardous material that they generate as part of the project including PCB ballasts, mercury containing lamps and or electronic waste.  The State is responsible to remediate any other hazardous materials discovered as part of the project.  If you would like the State to consider any additional language for Section 13 please submit the proposed language for consideration during the Vendor Inquiry Period.



c. We would suggest to negotiate language be added to address Mandatory Insurance. Again there seems to be no minimum requirements addressed in the Sample Document. We would suggest the following: 

i. Workmen’s Compensation equal to the statutory Limits of Liability 

ii. Commercial General Insurance - $5,000,000 Per Occurrence and $5,000,000 aggregate. 

iii. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit.  



The Insurance Requirements are stated in the P-37 section 14.  In the eventual contract for guaranteed energy performance contract Section 14 will be amended as follows and included in Exhibit C:



14.	Insurance.



14.1   The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance:

14.1.1Commercial General Liability Insurance:

Occurrence Form Policy: Include full Contractual Liability, Explosion, Collapse, and Underground coverage’s:

Limit of Liability:

a. $1,000,000 Each Occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage.

b. $2,000,000 General Aggregate – Include per Project Aggregate Endorsement.

c. $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate.

d. State shall be named as an additional named insured.

14.1.2 If blasting and/or demolition is required by the Contract, the Contractor or subcontractor shall obtain the respective coverage for those activities, and shall furnish to the Commissioner a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the required coverages prior to commencement of any operations involving blasting and or demolition. 

14.1.3 Owner’s Protective Liability coverage for the benefit of the State of New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

Limits of Liability:

$2,000,000 Each Occurrence

$3,000,000 Aggregate

14.1.4 Commercial Automobile Liability covering all motor vehicles including owned, hired, borrowed, and auto-owned vehicles.

Limits of Liability: 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

$1,000,000 Aggregate

14.1.5 Builders’ Risk Insurance (Fire and Extended Coverage):

The Contractor shall insure the work included in the Contract, including extras and change orders, on an “All Risk” basis, on one hundred percent (100% completed value basis of the Contract , as modified,  Builder’s Risk coverage shall include materials located at the Contractor’ premises, on-site, in-transit, and at any temporary site.  The policy by its own terms or by endorsement shall specifically permit partial or beneficiary occupancy prior to completion of acceptance of the entire work. The policies shall be in the name of the State Department of Administrative Services and the Contractors, Subcontractors, and others employed on the premises as insureds.  The policies shall stipulate that the insurance companies shall have no right of subrogation against any Contractor, Subcontractors or other parties employed on the premises.

14.1.6 Workers’ Compensation Insurance: In accordance with RSA 281-A.

Employers Liability:

$100,000 each accident.

$500,000 Disease-policy limit.

$100,000 Disease-each employee.

14.1.7 Professional Liability Insurance

The Designer/Contractor Team, or the Designer shall purchase and maintain professional liability coverage for this project. The coverage shall provide the State of New Hampshire with protection against design errors and omissions and shall have an annual aggregate limit of no less than $2,000,000.  The coverage shall be maintained through the legal stature of repose period, currently stipulated to be three (3) years from the date of Substantial Completion.  If the professional liability coverage is maintained by other that the Contractor for this Project, the Contractor shall provide evidence of indemnifications, approved by  the State of New Hampshire, that indicate that this insurance coverage is in place and available for the protection of the State. The indemnification may not create a re-assignment of contractual responsibilities between the State and the Contractor.

14.1.8 General Insurance Conditions

Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or modifications of the policy earlier that thirty (30) days or ten (10) days in cases of non-payment of premium after written notice thereof has been received by the State.



The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.



e. The Sample Contract doesn’t spell out standard Warrantee requirements. We would like to add language to Paragraph 11 of the Sample Contract. That language would address a typical warrantee of one year parts and labor beginning when the State agrees to substantial completion. We can suggest language if it would be helpful. 



The Warranty Language will be included in the eventual contract for guaranteed energy performance contract under the Operations, Maintenance Services and Training Section.  



1.4  The Contractor shall provide a full warranty including all parts and labor for one year after Substantial Completion of each Energy Conservation Measure (ECM).  After the warranty expires, eh State will be responsible for repair and replacement of failed equipment (other than failures caused by the Contractor’s negligence) at its own expense.



The Contractor shall provide emergency response number that shall be monitored on a 24 x 7 x 365 basis for emergency situation during the construction phase of the project.  The Contractor must respond to service calls during the construction phase in accordance with the following minimum requirements:

Emergency Calls must be returned within one hour with the Contractor responding to the site within two hours.

Non-Emergency Calls must be returned within one business hours 8 Am to 5 PM weekdays with the Contractor responding to the site within one business day.

	

2. Reference Page #8 – the RFP statement “recognize the historic nature of all seven of the State’s facilities and shall therefore propose ECMs that do not violate these historic features” and contrast that with the statement on page 8 “All ECMs should comply with currently adopted codes of the State of New Hampshire including ventilation”. Can you identify which buildings are listed as historical buildings? IBC 2009 Par. 3409 allows for the “Authority Having Jurisdiction” (AHJ) to exempt a building from meeting the required codes if it is listed as a historical building and does not ‘constitute a distinct life safety hazard’. Do any of these buildings fit into the historical building category? Of the buildings that do fit the historic building distinction, will the AHJ agree to the historic building exemption particularly in regards to meeting the ventilation requirements and wave the requirements? Please specify which buildings, if appropriate will be exempted. 



All seven buildings that are to be evaluated during the proposal phase of the project are considered historic and for the purposes of the RFP we assume that none of them will be exempted.



3. If the AHJ determines that the current lack of ventilation in the buildings is “Unsafe” as defined in 2009 IEBC Chapter 2, then is it the AHJ’s intent to follow the requirements of 2009 IEBC Chapter 1, Section 115? Yes. 



4. If it is determined that Ventilation is required, can baseline energy usage be adjusted to compensate for additional ventilation loads that are currently not provided in the baseline energy usage. No.



5. Is the 10% reduction in fossil fuel an aggregate across all seven (7) RFP buildings or does it apply by building? The 10% refers specifically to heating systems added to the project to replace current district steam usage. It does not refer to each building, but should be reflected in the aggregate total in both the proposal (7 buildings) and final audit (28 buildings).



6.    Is it possible to provide a one-line diagram for the electrical power distribution for the State House Annex and State House? 



The State does not have an up-to-date one-line diagram.



7.    Howard Recreation:  Half of the roof was re-roofed within the last 2 to 4 years.  Is there a plan to replace the second half of the roof? Yes.  Contractors should assume that the roof work will be completed.



8. Does the State anticipate hiring a separate Owner's Agent or Representative to oversee the ESCO contractor? The State intends to utilize the Bureau of Public Works Design and Construction to oversee the work. The State does not intend to hire an outside contractor to provide this service.



[bookmark: _GoBack]9.    Gallen State Office Park Main Building:  Have any window replacements occurred over the past 12 months at the seven (7) RFP buildings? No.



